
MINUTES OF THE CITY OF DRIGGS

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

MARCH 30, 2009

Pursuant to adjournment of the council meeting held Tuesday, April 14, 2009, and at the call of the Mayor,
the Driggs City Council met in a special session with the City of Victor Tuesday, March 30, 2009, at 6:00
p.m. Present were Driggs City Council Members: Greer Jones, George Mosher, and Colin Dye. Driggs Mayor
Louis Christensen, Planning Administrator Doug Self, Public Works Director Jared Gunderson and Henry
McKracken, and  City Attorney Stephen Zollinger. Present from the City of Victor were: David Kearsley,
Scott Golden, Scott Fitzgerald, David Bergart, and John Zing. Others present were Willie Teuscher from
DEQ, Scott Rogers and Eric Solomon from Aqua Engineering, Rob Huessevelt and Jason Linford from
Sunrise Engineering, Jeff Snyder and Diane Temple from Nelson Engineering, Julie Neff and Dale Lish from
USDA Rural Development, Hope Strong from the Teton Valley Citizen and Mike Polhamus from the Teton
Valley News.

DRIGGS CITY COUNCIL - WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLAN AMENDMENT - 6:00PM

Mayor Louis Christensen explained the status of the sewer treatment facility plan update and introduced
Scott Rogers of Aqua Engineering to present the alternative treatment facility (MSABP) being proposed.

Scott Rogers presented Aqua Engineering’s analysis of the treatment facility options and discussed the
proposed alternative (MSABP-Multi-Stage Activated Biological Process) plant, as well as the interim
upgrades that would be needed.  Mr. Rogers displayed a graph of the influent flows and stated that the
average was 350,000gpd (gallons per day) over a years time.  However the influent flows are 240,000-
250,000gpd without the peak times.  Mr. Rogers stated that this lower rate was more typical with 65-70gpd
per person because the ground water added about 200,000gpd.

Mr. Rogers discussed BOD (biochemical oxygen demand)  levels, stating that the algae blooms cause
problems with the BOD and E-coli conformance.  He also discussed some improvements that would take
place regarding this with the anticipation of going to a mechanical plant.  

Regarding population growth, Mr. Rogers stated that the starting point of 3,600 people was used with a 2%-
4% growth increase.  He also stated that a majority of planners had indicated this as an appropriate range,
despite decreased growth due to the economy.  The design discussed was based on 8,200 people in the year
2030 using 100gpd per person.  Peak hour flow would be 1.6mgd with BOD projected at 230mg/l.  Maximum
BOD concentration is 350 for the design.  

Mr. Rogers stated that the proposed system was an “attached grown” biological wastewater treatment process
with multiple biological selectors in the series.  The lack of waste sludge would result in large cost savings.
The MSABP, Mr. Rogers stated, was very good at removing ammonia.  He further explained the background
of the MSABP.

The hydraulic retention time for this plant is 16-24 hours.  Mr. Rogers discussed the options for screening
out inert material, adding that every 7-10 years the diaphragm or socks have to be replaced.  He continued
to state that the blowers must be used and explained several different options. 

Mr. Rogers discussed the pilot plant that was used in Driggs and showed graphs for BOD, TSS, ammonia
and nitrate. He stated there were purposeful attempts to make the pilot plant fail by putting 3 times the design
flow and organic load into it.  However, the plant still had most of its parameters within compliance.



The site plan for the proposed Driggs MSABP facility was presented which included two lagoon ponds that
would be maintained in a completely contained state for any overflow situations.  Mr. Rogers stated that the
plan could be scaled back to fewer cassettes to start if needed.  

Should there be more restrictive standards applied to the Teton River, Mr. Rogers discussed the disc filters
that catch the “end bugs” and are a placeholder for nutrient removal equipment.  

Mr. Rogers discussed the minimal level of operations and maintenance labor that would be required with the
MSABP plant.  He stated it would be no more then the current work load and stated it may require ½ hour
a day of labor, mainly to check and observe the plant.

The estimated total for the proposed plant is $8,439,525 with current bids coming in at 20%-30% less than
the engineer’s estimates.  Mr. Rogers discussed the options for the two unused ponds, stating they could be
used as bird habitats.  An idea to see if natural phosphorous removal could be done in the wetlands also could
be tested during the summer months. 

Willie Teuscher clarified that the project growth included the City of Victor staying on the system. 

Jeff Snyder questioned if other states had approved this plant type.  Mr. Rogers stated Georgia, Indiana,
Wisconsin and Illinois had been approved this plant type with Colorado and Idaho being on the verge of
approval.

Scott Fitzgerald questioned what the additional phosphorous removal equipment cost might be.  Mr.
Teuscher stated that increased phosphorous removal standards was probably at least 10 years away, which
would coincides with the next permit cycle.  

Mr. Rogers discussed the options for membranes, explaining the different types of manufacturers.  

Mr. Fitzgerald inquired about the operating temperatures.  Mr. Rogers stated that water temperatures in
Wisconsin were around 40 degrees.  However the temperature does not affect this type of plant as much
compared to an MBR or activated sludge plant.

Mr. Rogers stated that new technology was coming for lagoons through research at the University of Utah.

Mayor Louis Christensen asked if the USDA representatives could discuss the available funding.  Julie Neff
stated that the interest rate starting April 1  would be 3.75% and that loans would be 70/30, loan versus grant.st

Mayor Christensen stated there would need to be a municipal bond election in order to access the USDA
loan.

The City of Victor 2007 Estimated Census, Mayor Christensen reported, was between 1500 and 1600 people
with approximately 400 people on the system between the two cities for a total served population of 3,600
people.  

Willie Teuscher questioned how the cost would be split between the two communities.  Mr. Rogers stated
that there was a little more flow coming form Victor at the summer peak months, which what dictated the
design.  However, the average flow was slightly higher from Driggs due to a higher population.  Mr. Rogers
felt the source causing the 350 BOD level should be investigated because it would affect the design and air



flow.  He further explained the different types of blowers in terms of energy efficiency and cost.

George Mosher questioned the chances of the MSABP being approved.  Mr. Teuscher stated that it should
be approved by the state.  The plan amendment should move forward to compare alternatives.  Mr. Mosher
thanked DEQ, stating that he appreciated the opportunity to pursue an option that was much less costly.

David Kearsley asked if the Nelson Study had been submitted for approval.  Mayor Christensen stated that
the hearing had been completed on the environmental impact and it had been sent to Boise.  Mr. Roger stated
that his amendment was ready to proceed.  Mr. Teuscher stated that the plan would need to be compared to
the per user rates for various treatment options as well as alternative funding scenarios.  Once the study and
amendment are complete, DEQ can go to Congress and help lobby for the funding, Mr. Teuscher concluded.

Funding options were discussed.  A standard revolving fund program was discussed.  Mr. Teuscher stated
that Driggs was “fairly low” on the priority list and would not be able to obtain money from the stimulus pool
for this year, primarily because the plan was not finished and the bond had not been passed.

JOINT MEETING WITH CITY OF VICTOR OFFICIALS CONCERNING WASTEWATER
TREATMENT - 7:00PM

Mr. Rogers presented the same information from the earlier meeting again for several Victor representatives
who were not in attendance for the original presentation.   

David Kearsley asked about the growth projections.  Mr. Rogers stated that it was based on 30 years at 4%
growth.  He further stated that flows had been fairly flat since the plant was built.  However, infiltration in
the summer was becoming an issue.  Winter months were also a problem with the taps running to prevent
freezing.  George Mosher stated that the city should not be giving the water away if it needed to pay for a
treatment plant of this quality in the future.

Mr. Kearsley stated that it appeared the next step was to make sure the studies were complete.  Mayor
Christensen stated they were done but hadn’t been submitted to DEQ at this time as they were still with
Sunrise Engineering.  

Mr. Rogers stated he would work with the cities on user rates and funding options.

Greer Jones felt another work meeting should be scheduled to figure out how funding would be obtained.
Mr. Teuscher recommended looking for 10%-20% more funds to account for higher engineer estimates
and/or inflation.  George Mosher stated the an upgrade on the transmission line would need to happen as
well.  

Mr. Rogers passed out a handout summarizing the presentation he gave.

A work meeting would be scheduled once the plan and amendment was approved.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 8:16pm.



ATTEST:

________________________________ _________________________________

Sonya Adams, City Clerk Louis B. Christensen, Mayor


	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4

